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LOCATION:
2237 Beaver Shop Road, Cobb County, Georgia; USGS 7.5 minute Mountain Park Quadrangle
(1992); Universal Transverse Mercator Coordinates: 732096E 3767429N Zone 16.

PRESENT OWNER AND QOCCUPANT:
Riversouth Land Management

PRESENT USE:
Vacant

SIGNIFICANCE:
The House was constructed ca.1930 as a central hall house. It has undergone a number of
alterations since its original construction.
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ARCHITECTURAL DEVELOPMENT

The house located at 2237 Beaver Shop Road (Figure 1), is one story, frame construction,
and rests on a continuous concrete block foundation (Figures 2-8). The facade consists of a
centered entry, with two window openings on the west side and one existing window opening on
the east side. An additional window on the east side appears to have been covered. All windows
on the fagade were removed prior to investigation and it is unknown when these windows were
removed. Only one potentially original window remains intact. This window is a three-over-one
Craftsman style double hung sash and is located on the east elevation. The entry consists of a
modern steel door with pressed panels, and a single pane sidelight to the right of the door. Due
to the enlarged opening, the original entry may have had a similar layout with a door and a single
sidelight. A porch runs almost the entire length of the fagade and consists of a poured concrete
slab atop a continuous concrete block foundation, with square wood posts supporting a shed roof.
The roof'is covered with composite shingles and has two symmetrically placed single dormers.
The dormers appear to be modern additions and have modern six-over-six double hung sash
windows. The most prominent feature of the existing house is a fieldstone chimney, which is
centered on the west elevation of the original house.

The exterior of the house is covered with several layers of siding material. The first
visible layer is rolled asphalt siding with a faux brick pattern. This product was popular
beginning in the 1930s as an inexpensive siding material. The rolled asphalt siding was covered
with wood siding at a later date.

The interior of the house contains primarily modern finishes. Original interior detail
includes heart of pine flooring, and painted wood tongue and groove walls. Original wall
finishes are visible where window surrounds have been removed. Original flooring is visible in a
closet under the stairs in the entry room.

The circa 1930 house appears to have been constructed as a vernacular one story, side
gabled, central hall house. A rear ell on the east side of the north elevation appears to be a later
addition. The kitchen, located at the west side of the north elevation, appears to be an enclosed
porch.

Landscaping on the property is casual, with mature hardwoods and shrubs. A poured
concrete walk leads from the street to the house. A mid-twentieth century garage, accessed by a
gravel drive, is also located on the property.

The house has undergone a number of significant alterations and modernizations on both
the exterior and interior. Much of the original interior detail has been either covered with
modern materials or removed, making the exact date of construction difficult to discern.
However, original materials were documented where visible.
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PROPERTY HISTORY

The earliest deed reference to the property is dated 1886, when M.A. (Mace Andrew

' Augustus) Mayes deeded the land in lot 484, among other acreage (Table 1) to his son N.M.
(Newton M.) Mayes. It appears that in 1896, M.A. Mayes deeded the same land in Lot 484 to
his daughter Mrs. Margaret A. (Mayes) Morris. No record was found to indicate how the land in

, Lot 484 reverted back to M.A. Mayes from N.M. Mayes, as it was also included in the earlier

1886 deed. Newton and Margaret were two of the fourteen children born to Mace Andrew

Augustus Mayes and his wife Eliza Aderhold.

Members of both the Mayes and Morris families were among the early settlers in Cobb County
(Temple 1989: 65-69), and both families appear on a Civil War map near the site of the house.
The Morris family lived in the vicinity of the Sandy Plains Road and Shallowford Road
intersection, which is north of the present site. An account written in the 1930s described the
area as “a pleasant one of prosperous farms and plantations” (Temple 1989: 69). Land lot 484
appears to have been just a portion of the land holdings of the Mayes family beginning in at least
the mid-nineteenth century. However, it appears the Mayes family probably lived south of the
present site according to the location on the Civil War map, and a reference to the Mayes
cemetery on modern USGS Quadrangles is located further south, near the intersection of
Piedmont and Sandy Plains roads. At least two of the Mayes daughters, Margaret and Cantie,
married into the Morris family (Temple 1989: 69).

In the 1880 census, Newton Morris is listed as a farmer living in the 898" Militia district with his
wife Margaret A., and their three children, Fannie E., Newton M., and an infant son. By 1900,
Margaret is a widow and living in the Gritter (911) District, with a son, Newton M., and
daughter, Newtonia M. Margaret is listed as a farm overseer, Newton M. is listed as a cattle
dealer, and Newtonia M. is listed as a farm laborer.

Margaret A. Morris sold the land in Lot 484 J.E. Johnson in 1909, but the deed was not recorded
until 1920. According to records on file in the Cobb County Deed Office, it appears Johnson
may have had financial problems and used the property as security for a number of loans.
Among the creditors whom Johnson used the property to secure debts was J.R. Fowler. A July
1924 document indicates all of land lot 453 (40 acres), all of land lot 484 (except two acres sold
off the southwest corner), and 10 acres in the northeast quarter of land lot 526 were sold at a
Sheriff’s sale to satisfy an unpaid debt to J.R. Fowler. The document indicates the transfer of the
property from Johnson to Fowler at that time, but two months later, the property reverts back to
Johnson (see Table 1). The property again reverts to J.R. Fowler sometime before 1944. In
1944, Fowler sold the property to A.B. Hamby and Mrs. Cora Luttrell (Cobb Co. DB 162: 149).
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Comparing the deed information with observed house characteristics, it is likely the house was
constructed by J.E. Johnson or J.R. Fowler. No references were found that indicate the original
construction date of the house. Deed and census records consulted do not indicate the location of
homesteads associated with the property. Following the sale to Hamby and Luttrell, the house

underwent a number ownership changes (see Table 1).

Table 1. Results of Cobb County deed research for 2237 Beaver Shop Road.

Year

Deed
Type

Grantor

Grantee

Land Description

Reference

1886

Warranty
Deed

M.A. (Mace
Andrew) Mayes

N.M. (Newton
M.) Mayes

Land Lot (LL) 527, 28 acres of
LL528 and LL482, “all that part
lying southeast of the Cumming
Road of No. 483 and 484,”
containing 123 acres, more or less

Cobb Co. DB [:570

1896

Warranty
Deed

M.A. Mayes

Mrs. Margaret A.
Morris

all of LL 453, LL 484, and the
north half of lot 450 and south half
of LL 452, and 30 acres more or
less of LL 454, bounded by lands
of Polk McClesky, east by land of
Mrs. Cantie Morris, South by lot
No (?7), and west by LL 453; 25
acres more or less of LL 483,
bounded north by LL 454, east by
lands of Mrs. Cantie Morris and
the public road, and south by
public road and west by LL 484,
containing 175 acres, more or less

Cobb Co. DB W:454

Sold
1909,
recorded
1920

Warranty
Deed

Mrs. Margaret A.
Morris

J.E. Johnson

All of LL 453 (40 acres), all of LL
484 (except two acres sold off the

southwest corner), 10 acres in the

northeast quarter of LL 526

Cobb Co. DB 65:460

1921

Security
Deed

J.E. Johnson

Merchants and
Farmers Bank

All of LL 453 (40 acres), all of LL
484 (except two acres sold off the
southwest corner), 10 acres in the

northeast quarter of LL 526

Cobb Co. DB 54:726

1920

QCD
(security
for debt)

1.E. Johnson

J.R. Fowler

All of LL 453 (40 acres), all of LL
484 (except two acres sold off the

southwest corner), 10 acres in the

northeast quarter of LL 526

Cobb Co. DB 54:564

1924
(July)

J.E. Johnson, by
W.E. Swanson,
Sheriff

J.R. Fowler

All of LL 453 (40 acres), all of LL
484 (except two acres sold off the
southwest corner), 10 acres in the
northeast quarter of LL 526 ($500
at Sheriff’s sale to satisfy unpaid
debt to J.R. Fowler)

Cobb Co. DB 80:583

1924
(August)

J1.R. Fowler

J.E. Johnson

All of LL 453 (40 acres), all of LL
484 (except two acres sold off the
southwest corner), 10 acres in the

northeast quarter of LL. 526

Cobb Co. DB 75:490
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Figure 1. Location of 2237 Beaver Shop Road on USGS 7.5” Mountain Park Quadrangle
(1992).
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Figure 9, 2237, Beaver Shop Road, floor plan.
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Figure 10. Location of 2237 Beaver Shop Road shown on 16™ District Map (Roth 1988: 197).
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